ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVM TTEE
March 24, 2015
8:.06 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representative David Tal erico
Representative Liz Vazquez
Representative Loui se Stutes
Representati ve Max G uenberg

Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 77

“"An Act relating to training regarding disabilities for police
officers, probation officers, parole officers, correctional
officers, and village public safety officers; relating to
gui delines for drivers when encountering or being stopped by a
peace officer; relating to driver's license exam nations; and
relating to a voluntary disability designation on a state
identification card and a driver's |license."

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 142
"An Act establishing Elders' Day."

- MOVED HB 142 QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE CONCURRENT RESCLUTI ON NO. 7
Proclaimng April 2015 as Child Abuse Prevention Month; and
proclaimng April 3, 2015, as Go Blue Friday.
- MOVED CSHCR 7(STA) OUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 14
Making application to the United States Congress to call a

convention of the states to propose a countermand anendnent to
the Constitution of the United States as provided under art. V,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 24, 2015



Constitution of the United States; and urging the |egislatures
of the other 49 states to nmake the sane application.

- MOVED CSHIJR 14( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 4

Relating to the duties of delegates selected by the |egislature
to attend a convention of the states called under art. V,
Constitution of the United States, to consider a counternmand
anendnent to the Constitution of the United States; establishing
as a joint conmttee of the legislature the Del egate Credentia
Committee and relating to the duties of the conmittee; providing
for an oath for delegates and alternates to a counternmand
anendnent convention; providing for a chair and assistant chair
of the state's counternmand anendnent delegation; providing for
the duties of the chair and assistant chair; providing
instructions for the selection of a convention president; and
providing specific |anguage for the counternmand anendnent on
which the state's convention delegates are authorized by the
| egislature to vote to approve.

- MOVED CSHCR 4(STA) OUT OF COWM TTEE
PREVI OUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 77

SHORT TITLE: DI SABILITY: | D/ LI CENSE AND TRAI NI NG RQMTS.
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) THOVPSON

01/ 23/ 15 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 23/ 15 (H) STA, FIN
03/ 24/ 15 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

Bl LL: HB 142
SHORT TITLE: ESTABLI SH ELDERS DAY
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) FOSTER

03/ 09/ 15 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 09/ 15 (H) STA

03/ 24/ 15 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

Bl LL: HCR 7

SHORT TITLE: CHI LD ABUSE PREVENTI ON MONTH
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) TARR

03/ 06/ 15 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 06/ 15 (H) STA

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 24, 2015



03/ 24/ 15 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HIR 14
SHORT TITLE: CALL FOR US COUNTERMAND CONVENTI ON
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HUGHES

02/ 11/ 15 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 11/ 15 (H) STA, JUD

03/ 19/ 15 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 19/ 15 (H Heard & Hel d

03/ 19/ 15 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 24/ 15 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

Bl LL: HCR 4

SHORT TITLE: US COUNTERMAND CONVENTI ON DELEGATES
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HUGHES

02/ 11/ 15 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 11/ 15 (H STA, JUD, FIN

03/ 19/ 15 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 19/ 15 (H Heard & Hel d

03/ 19/ 15 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 24/ 15 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE STEVE THOVPSON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As prinme sponsor, introduced HB 77.

JANE PI ERSON, Staff

Representative Steve Thonpson

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 77 on behalf of Representative
Thonpson, prime sponsor.

AMY ERI CKSON, Director

Di vi sion of Mdtor Vehicles

Depart ment of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 77.

JUANI TA WEBB

Wal | Busters Advocacy G oup ("Wall Busters")
Fai r banks, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 24, 2015



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 77.

PATRI CK REI NHART, Director

Governor's Council on Disabilities and Special Education
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 77.

ARTHUR DELAUNE, Menber

Wal | Busters Advocacy G oup ("Wall Busters")

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 77

KELLY ALZAHARNA, Director

Al aska Police Standards Council (APSC)

Department of Public Safety (DPS)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 77.

REBECCA TRAYLOR, Menber

Wal | Busters Advocacy G oup ("Wall Busters")

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 77.

REPRESENTATI VE NEI L FOSTER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As prinme sponsor, introduced HB 142.

ANDREA WATTS, Staff

Representative Neil Foster

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 142 on behal f of
Representati ve Foster, prine sponsor

ALBERT NI NGEULOOK
Shi shmar ef , Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 142.

RAY FRI EDLANDER, St af f

Representative Geran Tarr

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HCR 7 on behalf of Representative
Tarr, prime sponsor.

STUART KRUEGER, Staff

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 24, 2015



Represent ati ve Shel |l ey Hughes

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HCR 4 and HIR 14 on behalf of
Represent ati ve Hughes, prine sponsor

REPRESENTATI VE SHELLEY HUGHES

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor, addressed questions during the
conbi ned hearing on HCR 4 and HIR 14.

STUART THOMPSON
Mat anuska- Susi t na, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 4 and HIR 14.

M KE COONS, National Director

Citizen Initiatives

Pal mer, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in response to other testinony
during the hearing on HCR 4 and HIR 14.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:06: 01 AM

[Due to technical difficulty, the <call to order was not
recorded. ]

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee
meeting to order at 8:06 a.m Representatives Keller, Kreiss-
Tonkins, Stutes, Talerico, Vazquez, and Lynn were present at the
call to order. Representati ve Gruenberg arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

HB 77-DI SABI LI TY: | D/ LI CENSE AND TRAI NI NG RQMTS.

8:06:43 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 77, "An Act relating to training regarding disabilities
for police officers, probation officers, parole officers,
correctional officers, and village public safety officers;
relating to guidelines for drivers when encountering or being
stopped by a peace officer; relating to driver's |I|icense
exam nations; and relating to a voluntary disability designation
on a state identification card and a driver's |license."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 24, 2015



8:06: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STEVE THOWPSON, Alaska State Legislature, as
prime sponsor, introduced HB 77, and announced that Jane Pierson
woul d present the proposed |egislation.

8:07:15 AM

JANE PI ERSON, Staff, Representative Steve Thonpson, Al aska State
Legislature, presented HB 77 on behalf of Representative
Thonpson, prinme sponsor. She stated that the goal of HB 77 was
to inprove communication between |aw enforcenent professionals
and those in other agencies, who may interact wth people who
have no apparent disabilities. She said disabilities that are
not apparent to others include the following conditions:
intellectual disability, traumatic brain injury, nmental health
conditions, epilepsy, hearing inpairnment, fetal alcohol spectrum
di sorders (FASD), autism and post-traumatic stress disorder
( PTSD) .

M5. PIERSON said there were three conponents to HB 77. The
first was in regard to identification. She explained that on a
voluntary basis, a person with a disability could get a marker
on his/her license that would discretely informofficials of the
disability. It would require a letter froma doctor or nurse to
qualify for such a marker on the I|icense. The next conponent
was training, which [would be devel oped by] the Alaska Police
St andards Council (APSC). Ms. Pierson noted that she had net
with Kelly Al zaharna, the executive director of the council, who
had suggested that any changes to police standards would be
better placed in regulation, rather than statute.

8:09:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked for clarification.

8:09: 23 AM

MS. PIERSON noted that the |anguage on page 2, lines 8-13, of HB
77, described the curriculumrequirenents, and Ms. Al zaharna had
told her that the reason the requirenents would be better
outlined in regulation, was that if they were in statute, they
could grow to be unmanageabl e. She said the bill sponsor was
wor ki ng on an anendnent to address the issue.

8:10: 06 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 24, 2015



M5. PI ERSON said nost people did not know the proper protocol to

follow if they were pulled over by an officer. The third
conmponent of HB 77 would propose that the basic protocol was
witten in the driver manual and test. Ms. Pierson said she

t hought [the curriculum requirenents] should be in regulation,
as Ms. Al zaharna had reconmended.

MS. PIERSON stated that sonetines people with disabilities tried
to hide them pretended to understand their rights, did not
understand or hear commands, were overwhelned with the presence
of authority, or had trouble processing or renmenbering
i nformation. She said the proposed legislation would bring
awareness to the fact that the first interaction a person had
with a peace officer nmay generate the outcone of the entire
conversati on. Further, it would give people wth hidden
disabilities a voice.

8:11: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE THOMPSON rel ayed that the idea for the proposed
| egislation cane from people who shared stories about
i ndividuals who had been stopped by a police officer and
handcuffed for being intoxicated, when the individuals actually
were disabled. He said if the officer had had proper training,
he woul d have been able to figure out what was really occurring.

CHAIR LYNN asked if there would be any nethod by which the
proposed marker on the disabled person's driver's l|icense could
link to a database that would informthe officer of the specific
di sability.

M5. Pl ERSON answered that she thought the fiscal note that would
acconpany such technology would "be enough to sink the bill";
however, she ventured the technology could be added further
along in tine. She indicated that the proposed |egislation, as
witten, would [provide a marker on the |icense], which would
start the conversation between the officer and the individual
regarding the individual's disability. |In response to a follow
up question, she said the sponsor was not considering coding the
disabilities, but rather to offer a nore universal synbol on the
license indicating a person wwth a hidden disability.

CHAI R LYNN asked if, under HB 77, those individuals with hidden

disabilities would be able to go to the D vision of Mbtor
Vehicles (DW) for a new license.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 24, 2015



MS. PIERSON answered that they coul d. She continued, "There is
a $5 fee if you are getting a new license. Qher than that, as
long as they have a correct letter from their doctor, they
could.”

8:14: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES suggested that the requirenment for the
letter should omt the nurse and add a physician assistant (PA)
i nst ead. She opined that HB 77 was "a great bill." She
i ndicated she knew about a situation where a person with a
hi dden disability not only got put in handcuffs, but was also
Taser ed.

8:15:41 AM

MS. PIERSON directed attention to page 3, lines 6-7, which read
as foll ows:

To receive the designation, the person shall provide
proof of the disability from a person licensed as a
physi ci an or physician assistant under AS 08.64, as an
advanced nurse practitioner under AS 08.68, or as a
I i censed psychol ogi st under AS 08. 86.

M5. PIERSON, in response to Chair Lynn, said a psychiatrist
woul d be included, because he/she was a nedi cal doctor.

8:16: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ determ ned that the aforenentioned
| anguage on page 3, lines 6-7, aligned with |anguage on page 4,
i nes 25-28.

8:17:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE THOWPSON related that sone people wth hidden
disabilities did not want those disabilities pointed out;
therefore, he enphasized the voluntary nature of the proposal to
have the indication on a driver's license.

CHAIR LYNN pointed out that the indicator on the driver's
license would be visible to other people who asked to see a
license, such as airport security or a person selling al cohol.

REPRESENTATI VE THOVWPSON responded that was correct.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 24, 2015



8:17:52 AM

CHAIR LYNN offered his wunderstanding that the bill sponsor
wi shed to return to the conmmttee with a conm ttee substitute.

REPRESENTATI VE THOWPSON confirned that was correct.
8:18: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER observed that the fiscal note nmentioned
there woul d be sone nodifications to the manual published by the
DW, and he asked what those nodifications would be.

M5. PIERSON said the nodification would be the aforenentioned
list of protocol regarding how to act when approached by a
police officer. She indicated that since the DW revised the
manual every year, the addition of the proposed |anguage would
cost the state nothing.

8:18:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ said she had spoken to the conm ssioner
and deputy conm ssioner of the Departnment of Public Safety
(DPS), and they both said they thought the proposed |egislation
woul d be "reasonable to inplenent.” She said she wanted that in
witing for the record.

M5. PIERSON stated that was sonmething the sponsor would obtain
by working with the APSC.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ said she also wanted feedback from the
DIW. She opined that HB 77 was excellent |egislation. She
enphasi zed there was a strong training conponent, as noted by
the bill sponsor in his three-page handout [included in the
commttee packet] entitled, "Training 1in recognizing non-
apparent disabilities.™

8:20: 30 AM

AMY ERICKSON, Director, Division of Mtor Vehicles (DW),
Department of Administration, stated that the division would
have no problemi nplenenting HB 77.

8:20: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES said she presuned that because the
indicator on the driver's l|license would be voluntary, there

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 24, 2015



would be no issue related to the Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act (HI PA).

M5. PIERSON indicated that was her understanding, but said she
coul d check

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES reconmended doi ng so.
8:.21.:25 AM

JUANI TA WEBB, Wall Busters Advocacy Goup ("Wall Busters"),
began her testinony by relating that Wall Busters advocated for
di sabl ed and senior individuals. For exanple, she said the
group was heavily involved with a canpaign to get the [ ocal
fairgrounds paved. She stated that each year Wall Busters held
a legislative luncheon to discuss issues wth legislators. She
indicated that Wall Busters had worked with the legislature to
bring forward the legislation to address this issue, which she
sai d extends nati onw de.

V. WEBB said [articles entitled, "How M sunder st andi ng
Disability Leads to Police Violence," by David M Perry and
Lawrence Carter-Long, 5/6/14, and "People Wth Disabilities Half
of People Killed by Cops; Disability Rights Goups Protest," by
Joyce Chediac, 1/24/15, included in the comittee packet]
highlighted the outcomes of different situations that had

happened throughout the country. She referred to her persona
story [in a letter to the bill sponsor, included in the
comittee packet]. She said she would never have inmagined she

would [have had an experience that] gave her a better
under standi ng of what sone people with disabilities experience.
She relayed that her husband was legally blind, and she had
experienced people talking to her instead of him or speaking
loudly to him She stated that unless a person was living with
a disability, he/she could not fully understand it.

M5. WEBB said she thought the proposed |egislation boiled down
to one thing: education, both for people with disabilities and
the people who interact with them She indicated there my be a
situation in which a person with a disability nmay not be able to
communicate with an officer, and the marker on the card, along
with the training of the officer in what to do in such a
situation, would bring about a better outcone. She thanked the
bill sponsor.

8:25:11 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 24, 2015



M5. WEBB referred again to [the article by Joyce Chediac], and
she read [a portion of the final paragraph], which she said
sumred up her beliefs. It read as foll ows:

As a nenber of a community that supports justice and
i nclusion, we do not have the luxury to stand by when
injustice is blatantly taking place in any form nor
should we be satisfied to wait for other communities
to ask for our help. Cvil rights, respect and
justice are due to all.

8:25:44 AM

CHAI R LYNN remarked that getting pulled over by an officer could
render soneone "senmi-traumatized,”" and he ventured that the
reaction for soneone with a disability could be exponentially
greater.

8:26: 09 AM

PATRI CK REINHART, Director, CGovernor's Council on Disabilities
and Special Education, testified that the council had fully
vetted the issues related to HB 77 and fully supported the
proposed legislation for its intent to train people wth
disabilities how to act when pulled over by an officer and to
train officers how they should interact wth people wth
disabilities. Further, he said the fact that having a marker on
the license would be voluntary would nmake HB 77 nore pal atable
for sone.

CHAIR LYNN tal ked about the inportance of everyone |earning what
to do when an officer stops his/her vehicle. He indicated he
woul d encourage people to get out their driver's license and
pl ace both hands on the steering wheel before the officer

approaches the vehicle. He stated that it was dangerous for
officers when they pulled people over, because they never knew
who was going to be in the vehicle. He said there were
t housands of cases that illustrated that.

8:27:58 AM

ARTHUR DELAUNE, Menber, Wall Busters Advocacy Goup ("wall
Busters"), expressed his appreciation for the work of the
sponsor's office on HB 77. He addressed previously asked
guesti ons. First, he said it was not the intent of HB 77 to
allow an officer to recognize a disability through a database.
He explained that linking a marker on a license to a nane and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 24, 2015



personal information would be a violation of H PA He stated
that the entire purpose of the proposed legislation was to train
officers how to treat everyone respectfully, especially those
with hidden disabilities. The marker on the driver's license
would allow the officer to recognize that the person had a
di sability and, because of the training, he/she would be able to

ask appropriate questions. It would be up to the individual to
di scl ose what the disability was and what acconmodati ons he/she
mght need in order to create a safe interaction. He said

several years ago concern was expressed that this type of
| egislation may meke it nore dangerous for the police officer,
but he said that "absolutely is not the intent of the bill." He
said the police officer would ensure a safe traffic stop before
| ooking at the driver's license. He confirnmed that the proposed
| egi slation would not violate H PA regul ations. He said it was
the person's right to disclose a disability, and if he/she did
so, it would be helpful for both parties invol ved.

8:30:15 AM

MR. DELAUNE said he had two sons diagnosed with FASD, one of
whi ch had an encounter with |aw enforcenent a few years ago. He
said one of the traits of someone with FASD was that he/she
wanted to please the person with whomthey were interacting. He
said he had first-hand know edge that his son was giving answers
to the police officer in order to please the authority, but he
"did not understand what he was giving to the officer,” which
resulted in his being arrested. He said there are many stories
nati onwi de about people who have had bad encounters with police
officers, and he did not think many people did not realize what
an issue this was, because there had been articles about |aw
enforcenment "maybe overreacting to situations.” He said the
intent of HB 77 was to train officers not to overreact, but to
use de-escalation techniques in order to diffuse the situation

He said he had been working nost of the sumer with the various
police agencies that would be involved. He said under HB 77

the training would be held at academ es in Sitka, Fairbanks, and
Anchorage. He said the academ es in Anchorage and Fairbanks had
been wusing crisis intervention training, and the training
program was due for revanping in April 2015. He indicated that
the sanme standardized training would be used on all Al aska's
police force, and the conponent of the training fromHB 77 would
create safe practices that would positively affect everyone -
not only those with disabilities.

8:32:51 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 24, 2015



KELLY ALZAHARNA, Director, Alaska Police Standards Council
(APSC), Departnent of Public Safety (DPS), stated that the
division was supportive of the training, but thought that it
should be set up in regulation rather than in statute. She
confirmed that all three police academ es and the correctional
acadeny in Alaska "include sone form of this training at this
poi nt." She stated, "The council has been working, over the
| ast year, through a commttee, to revise the section in our
regul ations that specifies what training goes into each of the
acadeny curriculum and this is where we feel we would like to
have this type of training specified."

8:33:51 AM

CHAIR LYNN announced his intent to co-sponsor the proposed
| egi sl ati on.

8:34: 06 AM

REBECCA TRAYLOR, Menber, Wall Busters Advocacy Goup ("wall
Busters"), indicated that people with disabilities had cone to
the group with stories of being mstreated by police. She

tal ked about the inportance of being treated respectfully, and
said sone police, parole, probation, and corrections officers
have trouble recognizing that a person had a disability;
therefore, training would help in that recognition and teach the
proper treatnment of those with disabilities. She stated she
supported HB 77 because of the proposed training for officers.
She said Wall Busters Advocacy G oup believed that the proposed
| egislation would reduce conflict between individuals wth
disabilities and Ilaw enforcenent, which would "nmake these
encounters safer for all the parties involved."

8:36: 56 AM

M5. TRAYLOR relayed a story of a friend and colleague in \Wall
Busters who was experiencing nental health issues. She said
police entered the woman's honme and arrested her. The wonman was
i ncoherent, but not hostile or violent. She wound up in a
strait jacket in a holding cell overnight, for 18 hours, until
the police could figure out what to do with her. Ms. Trayl or
said there are not many facilities in Fairbanks that addressed
nmental health issues; therefore, the idea was to send the wonan
to the Alaska Psychiatric Institute (API) in Anchorage. She
of fered her wunderstanding that APl had becone "a dunping ground
for people with hidden disabilities or sone kind of behavior
that's not been determned.” She said there was nore to the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 24, 2015



wonman's story that she could provide to the commttee. She
indicated that this type of story was heard in Fairbanks and had
becone a huge problem nationally. She said in many of the cases

in the country that had been in the news, it was later
di scovered that the person involved had a nental health issue
and the incident could have been handled differently. She

stated that Wall Busters wanted to be on the forefront of fixing
this situation or at |east providing easier solutions for both
si des. She enphasized that the desired solution would nake
everyone invol ved handl e each situation better.

8:40: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to the proposal to
“create a discrete synmbol", found on page 3, line 3. He said he
hoped that the sponsor would consider that word, because he
opi ned the synbol should be imediately visible.

M5. PI ERSON responded that there was a current universal synbol.
She said the synbol would be |ike the one that was currently
used for veterans, which she said was noticeabl e.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested the sponsor consider the use

of the word "discreet”. He explained that he had interpreted it
as neaning "subtle" rather than "unique." He then directed
attention to a list, which he observed to focus on nental
i mpai r ment . He said other disabilities that could be hidden

wer e: partial hearing |oss, epilepsy, and sonmeone who did not
speak English. He said the latter would not usually be called a
disability, except it was in an emergency situation.

8:42:52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG credited Representative Kreiss-Tonkins
as having handed him a note that explained that the two neani ngs
of "discreet” and "discrete" were spelled differently.

8:43: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ suggested that perhaps there was a better
word to use, because if there was confusion anong the conmttee,
there could be confusion anong the public.

8:44: 07 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that he woul d keep public testinmony open on
HB 77.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 24, 2015



8:44: 13 AM
CHAI R LYNN announced that HB 77 was held over.

HB 142- ESTABLI SH ELDERS' DAY

8:44:19 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 142, "An Act establishing Elders' Day."

8:44:36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NEI L FOSTER, Al aska State Legislature, as prine
sponsor, introduced his staff, Ms. Watts, to present HB 142.

8:45:12 AM
ANDREA WATTS, Staff, Representative Neil Foster, Alaska State
Legislature, presented HB 142 on behalf of Representative

Foster, prine sponsor, as follows:

El ders of all cultural and ethnic backgrounds hold a

special place in the hearts of Al askans. El ders’
knowl edge and experiences provide a link fromthe past
to the present - a link that connects us to our

ancestors. Elders also serve a vital role as teachers
and nentors, guiding younger generations through the
many facets of life. Cel ebrating and honoring elders
on Wnter Solstice - a tinme of change and optimsm -
not only recognizes the value of those that cane
before us, but the significant |essons and know edge
they selflessly |eave behind for us to take into the
future.

M5. WATTS of fered to answer questions.
8.46: 06 AM

CHAI R LYNN asked if, under HB 142, the term "elder" was limted
to Al aska Nati ves.

M5. WATTS answered that it would include [elders] of all ethnic
and cul tural backgrounds.

CHAIR LYNN remarked that elders have a ot to contri bute.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- March 24, 2015



8:46: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ said she |iked HB 142, but suggested the
word "elder" had a nore cultural connotation. She said people
of a certain age were considered "seniors," and she said she
would Iike "to see this bill enconpass that group, too."

CHAIR LYNN echoed that older people who were non-Native were
usually referred to as seniors.

8:47:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG agreed that the term "elder" was
usually used to recognize a Native Al askan senior. He opi ned
that a definition, one way or the other, was necessary to avoid
conf usi on.

CHAIR LYNN said when he hears the word "elder,"” he thinks of
"Native Americans of one type or another."

8:48: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER tal ked about strengthening "sone of the
terns that were already out there." For exanple, he said there
was already an "dder Al askans' Day. " He indicated a
wi |l lingness to accept an anendnent.

CHAIR LYNN asked for information related to "d der Al askans'
Day. "

8:49: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked for the citation related to
"d der Al askans' Day."

8:49: 56 AM

M5. WATTS related that in 2006, Senate Bill 224 was introduced
by Senator Gary Stevens to establish the second Wdnesday in
Sept enber each year as "O der Al askans Day". She expl ai ned that
the sponsor's choice to use the word "elder" was because of its
definition, which denoted a person who was respected in the
community and who had passed on his/her know edge to other
generations, regardless of ethnicity or cultural identification.
She said the sponsor felt that "elder” reflected "an Al askan
perspective on an older person.” Not wi t hstanding that, she

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 24, 2015



echoed the bill sponsor's willingness to nodify the |anguage of
the bill for clarification.

CHAI R LYNN i ndi cated he had not objection to the use of the word
"el ders".

8:51:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said he liked the word "elder", thought it
was understood and had a unique neaning, and |eaned toward
keeping it in the bill.

CHAI R LYNN sai d he thought of an elder as an ol der, w se person.
8:52: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG agai n requested the citation.

8:52:13 AM

M5. WATTS said it was found in AS 44.12.100, which read as
follows [original punctuation provided]:

Sec. 44.12.100. dder Al askans' Day.

The second Wadnesday of Septenber of each year is
established as O der Al askans' Day to honor residents
of the state who are 60 years of age or older for the
many contributions made by older Alaskans to the
state. The day may be cel ebrated by public cerenonies
and by qui et appreciation.

8:52:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER said he thought "elder™ had various
connot ati ons. Anot her use of the word was in reference to
church el ders.

8:53: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked the bill sponsor if it was his
intent to al so honor church el ders under HB 142.

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER answered, "Qur intent is to honor all
el ders. "

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 24, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d that added another dinension, and
he asked, "Is there anybody else within the neaning of 'elder’
that you're thinking of including?"

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER answered that his intent was not to
specify what kind of elder, but "to strengthen the cel ebration
of ol der Al askans, older Anmericans, [and] elders.” He said he
t hought there were a lot of ternms that could explain that, and
he thought it was fitting to add "elders" to the |Iexicon,
because there was already such a heavy use of the word "elder”
in Al aska.

8:55: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TALERI CO stated his substantial preference for
the term "elder" over "senior." He nentioned El derhostel groups
in Al aska. He said ["elder"] was a term of respect and, while
"senior" may be conmonly used in legal matters, on a persona
basis, people tend to use the term "elder” in a fond and
conpassi onat e way.

CHAI R LYNN said he thought of an elder as a respected senior.
8:55:56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES said she would echo "that very sane
sentinment." She said she liked the definition of an elder as
sonmeone who had passed down his/her know edge. She agreed with
Representative Talerico regarding the preference of elder over
seni or.

8:56:40 AM

ALBERT NI NGEULOCK said he was an elder at 69 years of age. He
tal ked about his background and schooling, including his current
effort to earn a Ph.D. in Political Science. He said he was a
menber of the local elders commttee in Shishmaref, as well as a
menber of the local school's strategic planning commttee. He
stated his support of HB 142. He said there were nmany elders in
Al aska, from different ethnic groups, who had guided him and had
a great inpact on the person he had becone. He recalled one
elder telling him that opening one's eyes in the norning was
i ke opening a present on Christmas, because each day was a new
gift.

8:59:31 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 24, 2015



MR. NI NGEULOXKX recited a poem he wote in 1986, which read as
follows [handwitten, with original punctuation provided]:

A CH LD S PLEA

A CH LD VWONDERI NG . .
WONDERI NG
WHERE LOVED ONES HAD GONE
HOW LI FE BEGAN | N CHANG NG TI MES
AND HOW LI FE WLL BE IN THE GROMN- UP YEARS

A PRECI OQUS CHI LD
SO FULL OF LI FE AND JOY
WHCSE SHI NI NG FACE RADI ATES HOPE AND LOVE TO ALL THE WORLD
AND A CHI LD WHOSE SOUL IS SO | NNOCENTLY PURE
UNBLEM SHED FROM THI S WORLD' S STRI FE AND CARE

A WONDERFUL CHI LD
WONDERI NG
ABOUT SO MANY UNANSVERED QUESTI ONS
OF THI NGS SO HARD TO UNDERSTAND

THI' S BEAUTI FUL UNREPLACEABLE CHI LD
PLEADI NG FOR HELP
I'N THESE CHANG NG Tl MES
TI MES THAT CREATE CLOUDS OF QUESTI ONS AND WONDERMENT
IN A PRECIQUS CH LD S M ND, HEART AND SOUL

AND THE PAI N AND WONDERMENT OF NOT FI NDI NG ANSVERS
OR TO FIND A CARI NG PERSON TO ASK
MAKES A CHI LD CREATE LI NES OF WONDERMENT
ON A BEAUTI FUL FACE UNMARKED AND UNTOUCHED BY WORRYI NG ABOUT LI FE

IT 1S THEN THAT CARI NG PARENTS, RELATIVES AND SENI OR ELDERS
CAN HELP THE CHI LD BY ANSWERI NG AND SHOW NG THE WAY
W TH PATI ENT UNDERSTANDI NG AND LOVI NG COVPASSI ON
AND UNCLOUDI NG THE QUESTI ONS AND WONDERMENTS AVAY

WE ALL CAN HELP TO GUI DE A PRECI QUS CHI LD
W TH LOVE AND TENDER CARE
A PRECI QUS CHI LD WHO | S PLEADI NG FOR HELP AND GUI DANCE
I'N THESE CHALLENG NG CHANG NG TI MES!!'!

MR, NI NGEULOOX said he wote the poemin 1986. He said he went
to high school at M. Edgeconbe, and he nentioned a now deceased
elder who was |ike a nother to him in Sitka. He stated his
belief that "there are no sunsets in each one of our lives." He
encouraged the commttee to take the tinme needed to approve the
proposed | egislation. He talked about Wnter Solstice and
preparing for a harsh climate. He explained he had selected his
poem to read to enphasize a child s point of view and the
i nportance of el ders.

9:03: 44 AM
CHAIR LYNN said it seenmed that M. N ngeul ook exenplified the

definition of an elder, and he expressed appreciation for M.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 24, 2015



Ni ngeul ook's previous renarks about opening one's eyes to a new
day.

9:04: 04 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked about M. N ngeul ook's Ph. D

MR. NI NGCEULOOK reiterated that he was focused on political

sci ence. He indicated that he was taking classes via the
Internet, and he expressed appreciation for the ability to earn
a degree at his age. He reenphasized his concern about the
gui dance of the next generation. He ventured that selecting a

specific date on which to honor elders may rem nd young people
about the vast know edge that el ders have.

9: 06: 09 AM

CHAI R LYNN cl osed public testinony on HB 142.

9:06: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ w thdrew her previously stated concern
about using "elders" versus "seniors". She noted that the
aforenentioned statute, AS 44.12.100, "covers seniors." She
indicated that she liked the term "elder", because of the

connotation of w sdom
9:07: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report HB 142 out of committee
with individual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, HB 142 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

HCR 7- CH LD ABUSE PREVENTI ON MONTH

9:07:37 AM
CHAI R LYNN announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 7, Proclaimng April 2015 as Child
Abuse Prevention Mnth; and proclaimng April 3, 2015, as o
Bl ue Fri day.
9:08: 28 AM

RAY FRI EDLANDER, Staff, Representative CGeran Tarr, Alaska State
Legi slature, presented HCR 7 on behalf of Representative Tarr,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 24, 2015



prime sponsor. She said the proposed concurrent resolution
woul d make April 2015 Child Abuse Prevention Month and proclai m
April 3, 2015, as "Go Blue Friday." She explained that blue was
the color to represent child abuse prevention, and she indicated
that the wearing of blue would show solidarity in putting an end
to viol ence against children.

M5. FRI EDLANDER related that for the first time last year, the
| egislature had passed legislation making April [2014] Child

Prevention Mnth, and then Governor Sean Parnell issued a
proclamation for April as Child Abuse and Awareness Month. In
2015, Governor Bill Walker did the sane. She stated, "W

believe by speaking up and raising awareness, we can be a part
of the preventative efforts in ending child abuse in Al aska."

M5. FRI EDLANDER said that wunder the Reagan Administration in
1983, U.S. Congress proclained April to be the first Nationa
Child Abuse Prevention Mnth, as a way to show commtnent to
finding solutions to end child abuse. Each year, states and
their prospective governors used April as "a nonth to stand
strong for our children."”

M5. FRIEDLANDER stated that according to the Child Wlfare
League of Anerica, Al aska had one of the five highest rates of

child abuse in the US. In 2014, the Ofice of Children's
Servi ces received nore than 40,000 allegations of harm invol ving
tens of thousands of children. She said tragically children
that are subject to abuse are |likely to Dbecone abusers
t hensel ves, engage in crimnal activity, and have a whol e spread
of psychol ogical and physiological issues. Ms. Fri edl ander

stated, "Every child deserves a loving famly, a safe hone, and
the opportunity to grow into an outstanding and responsible
menber of society ...." She encouraged the conmttee to support
t he proposed | egislation.

9:11: 07 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked Ms. Friedlander to explain what changes would
be made under a proposed commttee substitute for HCR 7.

M5. FRI EDLANDER answered that because the issue already had
statew de support, there were organizations working toward "Go

Blue Friday" on April 10. The bill sponsor had originally
intended April 3 as the day; therefore, the proposed conmttee
substitute would change it to April 10, in order to match

statew de efforts.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 24, 2015



9:11: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noted that according to W£kipedia, the
color blue is a synbol of twenty different itens, but child
abuse was not one of them He asked if there was anything el se
besi des child abuse that "Go Blue Friday" would represent.

M5. FRI EDLANDER responded that she could not speak to any other

holidays that incorporated blue, but said she knew that
organi zati ons had been working for the past few years on using
blue as the color of child abuse prevention. In response to

Representative Keller, she indicated that the Al aska Children's
Trust was the inpetus for bringing forward a conmttee
substitute.

9:13: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER nobved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HCR 7, Version 29-LS0684\H, d over, 3/19/15,
as a work draft. There being no objection, Version H was before
the conmmtt ee.

9:13:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he was aware of "Go Blue Friday”
and expressed appreciation for the sponsor's support of it.

9:13:59 AM

M5. FRIEDLANDER, in response to a question from Representative
Keller, reconfirmed that the term "Go Blue Friday," as used
under HCR 7, was related specifically to child abuse prevention.

9: 15: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER reiterated that he had been intrigued by
all the other things he read were synbolized by the col or bl ue.

9:15: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG enphasi zed that the use of the color
blue was being used very particularly for "Go Blue Friday,"
whi ch he indicated was a national canpaign

9:16: 11 AM

CHAI R LYNN cl osed public testinony on HCR 7.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 24, 2015



9:16:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report CSHCR 7, Version 29-
LS0684\H, dover, 3/19/15, out of conmttee wth individual
recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being
no objection, CSHCR 7(STA) was reported out of the House State
Affairs Standing Commttee.

9:16: 39 AM
CHAI R LYNN passed the gavel to Vice Chair Keller.

HIR 14- CALL FOR US COUNTERMAND CONVENTI ON
HCR 4- US COUNTERVAND CONVENTI ON DELEGATES

9:17: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER announced that the final order of business
was the conmbi ned hearing of:

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 14

Making application to the United States Congress to call a
convention of the states to propose a countermand anendnent to
the Constitution of the United States as provided under art. V,
Constitution of the United States; and urging the |egislatures
of the other 49 states to nmake the sane application.

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 4

Relating to the duties of delegates selected by the legislature
to attend a convention of the states called wunder art. V,
Constitution of the United States, to consider a countermand
amendnent to the Constitution of the United States; establishing
as a joint commttee of the l|legislature the Del egate Credenti al
Commttee and relating to the duties of the conmttee; providing
for an oath for delegates and alternates to a counternmand
anmendnent convention; providing for a chair and assistant chair
of the state's countermand anendnent delegation; providing for
the duties of the <chair and assistant chair; provi di ng
instructions for the selection of a convention president; and
providing specific |anguage for the counternmand anendnent on
which the state's convention delegates are authorized by the
| egi slature to vote to approve.

[Before the committee, adopted on 3/19/15 as a work draft, was

the proposed conmittee substitute (CS) for HIR 14, Version 29-
LS0249\ E, Gardner, 2/19/15.]

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- March 24, 2015



9:19: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HCR 4, Version 29-LS0250\E, Gardner
3/ 20/ 15, as work draft. There being no objection, Version E was
before the commttee.

9:19: 23 AM

STUART KRUEGER, Staff, Representative Shelley Hughes, Al aska
State Legislature, presented a sectional analysis to HCR 4 on

behal f of Representative Hughes, prinme sponsor. He said the
first "BE |IT RESOLVED', beginning on page 2, line 26, would
authorize the legislature "to appoint and sunmon del egates for
t he amendnent convention." He said the "FURTHER RESCLVED'

beginning on page 2, line 29, would give the Ilegislature
authority "to decide the qualifications and total nunber of
delegates to send to the Convention,” and the "FURTHER
RESCLVED', beginning on page 3, line 1, would give the

| egislature "the ability to add or renove del egates.”

MR. KRUEGER stated that the "FUTHER RESCOLVED', begi nning on page

3, line 6, wuld provide "paranmeters and instructions for
state’s del egates at the Convention." Further, he noted that it
woul d prohibit delegates from voting for "any other anendnents,
outside of the countermand anendnent, at the Convention."” He

said the "FURTHER RESOLVED', begi nning on page 3, line 13, would
reserve the countermand anendnent as "the only anendnent for
consideration for ratification by the legislatures.” He relayed
that the "FURTHER RESOLVED', begi nning on page 3, line 15, would
- "upon a call for convention by 34 states" - call for
"establishing of the Delegate Credential Committee within the
Al aska Legislature, with duties listed in Section A" Further
t he Speaker of the House would appoint three nenbers from the
House, one being a mnority caucus nenber, and the President of
the Senate woul d appoint three nenbers of the Senate, one being
a mnority caucus nenber.

MR. KRUEGER said the "FURTHER RESCLVED', beginning on page 3,
line 24, would provide for a "replacenent procedure for nenbers
of the Delegate Credential Conmmttee." The "FURTHER RESOLVED',
begi nning on page 3, line 26, would allow for "selection of co-
chairs of the Delegate Credential Committee,” which would
i nclude one co-chair from the House, one from the Senate, and
staff. The "FURTHER RESCLVED', beginning on page 3, line 30,
woul d establish when the Delegate Credential Committee could

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 24, 2015



neet, and the "FURTHER RESOLVED', beginning on page 4, line 1,
woul d acknow edge that the Delegate Credential Commttee would
"continue until the first day of the Thirtieth Alaska State
Legi sl ature.”

9:22: 03 AM

MR. KRUEGER stated that the "FURTHER RESOLVED', beginning on
page 4, line 3, would request that the Delegate Credenti al
Comm ttee be considered for reestablishnment during the Thirtieth
Al aska Legislature. He pointed out that wunder Version E
| anguage had been added such that future |egislatures would not
be bound by the concurrent resol ution.

MR. KRUEGER said the "FURTHER RESOLVED' | anguage, beginning on
page 4, Iline [7], provided for a "renoval and replacenent
procedure for nenbers of the Delegate Credential Commttee";
they would be "renoved or replaced by the presiding officer that
appoi nted them?" He directed attention to |anguage within the
next "FURTHER RESOLVED', beginning on page 4, line [18], which
provided the duties of the Delegate Credential Commttee to:
decide matters by mgjority vote; function as the official
facilitator for the |egislature; appoint del egates and provide a
commttee report on selected delegates; appoint a chair and
assistant chair; properly vet and confirm delegates; issue
convention passes to delegates; notify the legislature of the
financial needs at the Convention; admnister an oath to the
del egates, alternates, <chair, and assistant chair; nonitor
activities of Alaska’ s delegation; submt quarterly reports to
the legislature on events, progress, and reconmendations for the
Convention; and recommend renoval of a delegate or alternate for
approval by the |egislature.

MR. KRUEGER directed attention to |anguage wthin the final
"FURTHER RESOLVED', beginning on page 6, line [12], which would
provide for the duties of the chair of Alaska s state del egation

and the president of the Convention. The chair would be
responsi ble for: communi cating with other state delegations to
open convention for business; identifying other |egislatures

that have approved a delegate resolution; building consensus
with at least 26 state delegations to require that each state
del egation at the Convention has only one vote; requiring a
sinple majority vote at all roll <calls; nomnating convention
officials; requiring a quorum of 26 states to conduct business;
building a consensus of at |east 26 states to support sending
the countermand anmendnent for ratification; working to conclude
the Convention in 21 days or no longer than 180 days; and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- March 24, 2015



nom nating a candidate for president of the Convention from
Al aska’s delegation or working to elect a president from a
del egate resolution state.

MR. KRUEGER further directed attention to |anguage on page [8],
line [1], which listed the type of support that would be
established for the following duties of the president: securing
a vote for this delegate resolution to be the rules of order at
the Convention; focusing on the purpose of sending the
countermand amendnent for ratification by the states; requesting
security neasures as needed; overseeing installnment of officers
at the Convention; establishing convention agenda; providing

equal time for floor discussion for all states; prohibiting
i ntroduction of any subject other than the counternmand
anendnent; calling for a vote for sending a countermnd

amendnent to the states; reporting to 50 state |egislatures and
the nedia on convention progress; providing formal requests,
when needed, to states for noney that will be needed to carry on
busi ness; opposing any effort to delay or nodify the counternmand
anendnent vote; and opposing any effort by states to offer
anmendnent s ot her than the countermand anmendnent.

9:26: 56 AM

MR. KRUEGER sai d | anguage begi nning on page 10, line [4], would
address the duties and responsibilities of convention del egates,
which woul d include: conplying with directives in this
resolution; followng instructions of the chair and assistant
chair of Alaska's delegation; being present to vote at all rol
calls; attending all assigned sessions at the Convention;
reporting to the delegation chair the nunber of states in favor
of the countermand amendnent; and recomending strategies to
help join 26 states in favor of the countermand anendment. The
| anguage on page 11, line [9], would provide the text for the
count ermand anendnent to the United States Constitution.

9:28:11 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noted that [HCR 4] would be heard al so by
the House Judiciary Standing Conmmttee and the House Finance
Comm ttee.
9:28: 56 AM
REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG observed the commttee had received

letters from several different legislators, including one froma
Senator in Louisiana and a Representative in New Mexico, iIn

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 24, 2015



support of the |egislation. He asked what the genesis of the
proposed legislation was and whether it was supported by a
particul ar group or organi zati on.

MR. KRUEGER indicated that [HCR 4 and HIJR 14] were brought to
the bill sponsor by a constituent, who was the president of the
Al aska section of a national, grass-roots organization called
Citizen Initiatives. The group had been traveling across the
country to pronote simlar legislation in other states. He
stated it was inmportant to renenber that the goal of the
proposed legislation was to limt [the Convention] to a single
issue. He said there are other states in the process of hearing
simlar |egislation. He said the executive director of Citizen
Initiatives, Charles Kacprowi cz, had previously testified via
tel econference, and he was currently traveling from state to
state in a notor home. He said the concern of those involved in
this grassroots effort was that the sovereignty of states had
been "chi pped away over tinme" and needed to be restored.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said M. Coons was the director of the
Al aska section of Citizen Initiatives and was available on |ine
to testify.

9:32:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SHELLEY HUGHES, Alaska State Legislature, as
sponsor, addressed questions that had been asked. She expl ai ned
that the aforenentioned change nmade through Version E, regarding
not binding future legislatures, was nmade in response to a
concern raised by Representative Guenberg at a previous

nmeet i ng. She confirnmed the coment of her staff that the
| egi sl ati on was backed by a grassroots effort, with neither big
noney nor big nanes associated with it. She said that was a
uni que factor. She said she had spoken with Representative

Krei ss- Tonki ns about the threshold of 30 states, and she rel ated
she had read an article from Gllop, which said there were nore

"blue" states than "red." She acknow edged that that could
change, but indicated that the 30-state threshold was high,
considering there was only an 18-nonth w ndow. Finally, she

said there had also been concern expressed about the possible
unraveling of the U'S. Constitution; however, she said this
effort was very specific to protect that from happening.

9:34: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES, in response to Representative G uenberg,
reviewed that if the U S Constitution were anmended with a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 24, 2015



count ermand anendnent, there would be an 18-nonth w ndow for 30
states to agree on "a specific item that's not in their best
interest.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d one issue had been over the anount
of time the states would have for ratification. He offered
further details.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES, in response, clarified that the w ndow
did not apply to ratification, but to "enacting the nechanism™
She said the day before, State Senator Dan Sullivan had
addressed the House floor regarding federal issues, and the
mnority |eader brought up two issues she said she thought could
be addressed through a conventi on: the Transportation Security
Adm nistration (TSA) and the Arctic National WIdlife Refuge
( ANVR) .

9:38:27 AM

STUART THOWPSON testified in support of HIR 14 and HCR 4. He
posited the only legitimte objection to <calling for a
countermand convention was that "its essence" already existed
under the Ninth and Tenth Amendnments to the Constitution of the
United States; however, he stated that those constitutional
powers were "castrated by m smanagenent of the slavery issue and
the desperation of the GCvil War." Further, he said the powers
were "buried from view by anti-constitutional exaggeration of
federal powers through unlimted interpretation” of the General
Wl fare and Do and Proper C auses under Article I1. He stated
that holding a convention and passing a counternmand anendnment
woul d restore the check and bal ance powers of the states over
that of the federal governnent.

MR. THOMPSON opined that the nobst serious problem in the U S

today was the "lack of political will by the American people to
benefit from our full, poetical heritage in seeking life,
liberty, and the pursuit of happiness.” He stated that nost, if
not all, of the country's present woes could be reduced or
elimnated by applying that wll, including the managenent of

terrorism "without suffering bankruptcy from continuous war."
He said, "This circunstance is directly traceable to encouragi ng
citizen apathy by perverting civics education and increasingly
using the methods of other forns of governnment to deal wth

things." M. Thonpson said HB 30 and SCR 1 were "attenpting to
address this"; however, he urged immediate attention to "the
sensel ess source of political apathy enforcement in this
country." He warned that the U S. was becomng "a has-been

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- March 24, 2015



nation plunging into oblivion," and he indicated this was caused

by federal overreach and bullying "arising from anti-
constitutional <centralization of power enabled by neglect of
duty by the states.” He said this issue was what the aim of the

constitutional convention woul d be.

VR. THOMPSON indicated that those against the proposed
| egislation would argue that "governnent of, for, and by the
people” did not wrk in handling econonmc depression and

protecting people from threats such as terrorism He opi ned
that Anmericans had been increasingly "buying this" for nost of a
century and had increasingly been suffering from "the very ills

the nutating U S. Governnment has promsed to protect us from"
He urged people to "be real human beings instead of animls
beggi ng for protection.”

9:42: 08 AM
MR, THOVWPSON concl uded his testinony, as foll ows:

As free human beings, we nust face that we have to be
eternally on guard against the tenptation of giving
government unsupervised trust. CQur founders were very
alive to this and constructed our form of governnent
accordingly. W nust defend their creation. " m
sorry to say no governnent in history ever really
deserved even the trust that was given. Gover nient
al ways has been an inperfect invention of humanity.
Cooperation between those in authority and those
governed is the only hope we have, no matter how hard
it is to do so.

9:43: 11 AM

M KE COONS, National Director, Ctizens Initiative, stated that
his testinobny was in response to testinmony given [during the
House State Affairs Standing Commttee's 3/19/15 hearing on HIR
14 and HCR 4] by assistant attorney general M chael Schechter.

VICE CHAIR KELLER noted that M. Schechter was available via
tel econference for response.

MR. COONS explained that M. Schechter had nade coments that
needed to be corrected. First, he said M. Schechter's repeated
use of the term "constitutional convention" when referencing the
states' wuse of Article V was incorrect. M. Coons enphasized
that that use pertained to an "anendnent convention." He said

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- March 24, 2015



the continued use of the term constitutional convention in this
matter was one of the reasons that the John Birch [Society] and
the [ Texas] Eagle Forum had been so vocal and effective over the
| ast 30 years. He said the only constitutional convention was
in 1787, when Article V was put into the Constitution "for
pur poses of anending the Constitution either by Congress or the
states."

MR. COONS said the second mstake M. Schechter made was in
having stated that Congress had made use of Article V, 27 tines.
M. Coons said the actual nunber was closer to 100. He
expl ained the significance of this was that the states rejected
all  but 27 proposed anendnents, which was why [Citizens
Initiative] put such an enphasis on ‘"state legislature
sovereignty in this process."” M. Coons offered his
understanding that M. Schechter's third mstake was in regard
to limtation of the nunber of topics at a convention. He said,
"He talked about concerns if states can linmt to a single
amendnent . Article V is about the right of states to propose
amendnents; that neans one or nore."

MR. COONS said M. Schechter had said this issue had never been
acted upon by the courts or Congress and that the Departnent of
Law did not know how the question of a convention would be

recei ved. M. Coons enphasized that the courts had nothing to
do with the convening or running of the Convention. He said
Congress had only three duties: to keep count of the

applications per subject nmatter; to convene a convention upon
the 34 states nmking the same application; and to receive and
send the proposed anendnent for ratification to the 50 states.
He added, "The rest of it is state sovereignty and the states’
rights under Article V."

MR. COONS indicated that M. Schechter had put forth as an
"equally valid theory" that once called, a convention created
its own rules and could consider whatever anendnments it may
choose. He stated, "This is why the del egate resolution, HCR 4,
is so inportant. Wen 26 or nore states - a nmjority - pass
this, along wth the enbedded countermand anendnent | anguage,
there is no option for the several states at the Convention to
create its own rules or to bring up other anendnents.™

9:47: 00 AM
MR. COONS opined that of the tw resolutions before the

committee, the nost inportant was the one that would ensure the
safety and efficiency of the Convention by requiring 26 or nore

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- March 24, 2015



states adopting the rules for the Convention prior to it being
convened.

9:49:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Coons if he was famliar with
the letter from Katherine Marshall [included in the conmttee
packet]. He confirmed that it was an opposition letter.

MR. COONS stated that he had read all the opposition |etters.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered his wunderstanding that the
guotes included in the letter were of a fragnent of statenents
made by a solicitor general and a U S. Suprene Court justice
and he said he would Iike to see the rest of the quotes in order
to put them into context. He explained that he thought the
quotes pertained to things other than the proposed counternmand
anmendnent, but rather to the general philosophies of those who
spoke them

9:52:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES agreed to supply the contextual text from
whi ch the quotes were extract ed.

9:52: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether the sponsor had any nore
current opinions about the proposed legislation derived from
|l egal scholars, for exanple, as opposed to lay people or
politicians. He said he would like to focus on this in the next
commttee of referral. He said he would like to see the best
| egal thinking - pro and con - on the subject.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES said her staff could do research; however,
she rem nded Representative Guenberg that this effort had not
begun until about |ast year, so there may not be nuch avail able
specific to this |egislation.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if any states had passed simlar
nmeasur es.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES offered her understanding that currently
17 states had sponsors, and 9 of those states introduced the
| egi sl ation.

9:54: 35 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -31- March 24, 2015



MR. KRUEGER, in response to Representative G uenberg, said North
Dakota had passed its legislation through the House, and he
offered his understanding that it was currently being heard in
its Senate. In response to a question, he said he was not aware
of any specific countermand anendnent |aw revi ews. He deferred
to M. Coons. He said he thought the majority of the opposition
letters referred to prior efforts regarding a convention of
states, a balanced budget, and an attenpt to overturn the
Citizens United decision. He expl ai ned, "They bl anket
| egi sl atures whenever there are resolutions or bills regarding a
constitutional or anendnent convention being discussed, so a
nunber of those are related to other efforts and just directed
toward our |egislature in response to these resolutions.”

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG  added further details to hi s
af orenenti oned request for information.

9:56:40 AM

VICE CHAIR KELLER noted that in the commttee packet was a
conpendi um | egislative guide on the Constitution, witten by
Robert G Natel son, whom he said he had net. He ventured that
M. Natelson would agree with him that this issue was a
nonparti san one.

9:58:34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES noved to report CSHCR 4, Version 29-
LSO0250\E, Gardner, 3/20/15, out of commttee wth individual
recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being
no objection, CSHCR 4(STA) was reported out of the House State
Affairs Standing Commttee.

9:59:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES noved to report CSHIR 14, Version 29-
LS0249\E, Gardner, 2/19/15, out of commttee wth individual
recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being
no objection, CSHIR 14(STA) was reported out of the House State
Affairs Standing Commttee.

10: 00: 32 AM

VI CE CHAIR KELLER returned the gavel to Chair Lynn.

10: 01: 20 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -32- March 24, 2015



ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 10:01
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 33- March 24, 2015



